

DYLAN WRIGHT DIRECTOR OC COMMUNITY RESOURCES

CYMANTHA ATKINSON ASSISTANT DIRECTOR OC COMMUNITY RESOURCES

JULIE LYONS DIRECTOR ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES

ANDI BERNARD DIRECTOR OC ANIMAL CARE

JULIA BIDWELL DIRECTOR OC HOUSING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

RENEE RAMIREZ DIRECTOR OC COMMUNITY SERVICES

TOM STARNES DIRECTOR OC PARKS

JULIE QUILLMAN COUNTY LIBRARIAN OC PUBLIC LIBRARIES

OC HOUSING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 1501 E. ST. ANDREW PLACE, 1ST FLOOR SANTA ANA, CA 92705 PHONE: 714.480.2991 FAX: 714.480.2978



# Fiscal Year 2023-24 FUNDING ALLOCATION POLICY and PROCESS

# HOUSING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT JULIA BIDWELL, DIRECTOR

For the distribution of Federal and Local Funding for: Public Facilities & Improvements, Housing Rehabilitation, Public Services and Affordable Housing

Public Review Draft: October 3, 2022 - November 3, 2022

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

| Section Page   |
|--|
| Introduction3  |
| I. Funding Allocation Policy   |
| A. Urban County Program3   |
| B. Types of Funding Available4                                       |
| C. Use of Funds  |
| D. Percentage of Allocation5   |
| E. Urban County Priorities5  |
| II. Funding Allocation Process                                       |
| A. Non-Competitive Funding Process                                   |
| B. Competitive Funding Processes                                     |
| C. Multi-Year Funding  |
| D. Proposal Review Process and Key Policies                          |
| E. Substantial Amendment to Project                                  |
| F. Non-Substantial Amendments12                                      |
| G. Program Income12  |
| H. Affordable Housing 13   |
| I. Performance Measurements13  |
| III. Proposed FY 2023-2024 FAPP Schedule15                           |
| Tables   |
| Table 1 Fiscal Years 2020-24 Funding Allocations4                    |
| Table 2 Estimated Funding Allocations proposed for FY 2023-245       |
| Table 3 FY 2020-24 Federal Funds Allocation for High Priority Needs8 |
| Table 4 Performance Outcome Measurement System13                     |

# Introduction

Under Title I of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as amended, Orange County meets the qualifications of an Urban County. Under Federal regulations, Urban Counties are eligible to receive and allocate Community Development Block Grant (CDBG), Home Investment Partnership Program (HOME), and Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG) funds. Housing & Community Development acts as the lead agency for administrating each program, under the direction of the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD).

The FY 2023-24 Funding Allocation Policy and Process (FAPP) is a planning document that marks the fourth year of the FY 2020-24 Consolidated Plan (ConPlan). The primary purpose of the FAPP is to utilize priorities listed in the ConPlan to set policies and processes to address local housing and community development needs with Federal and local resources in preparing the Annual Action Plan (AAP). The Annual Action Plan (AAP) will be presented to Orange County Board of Supervisors at a Public Hearing on or about April 2023.

The FAPP also includes estimated funding goals for eligible housing, community development, and/or economic development activities; the process for distributing funding; funding priorities; funding exceptions; and overall requirements to be met when using Federal and local funds.

Congress passed the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act and the President signed it on March 27, 2020 authorizing \$2.2 trillion in a variety of stimulus measures to prevent, prepare for, and respond to the COVID-19 pandemic. The County of Orange receives regular formula-based entitlement grants of Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG) and Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds through the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) each year. As part of the CARES Act, HUD allocated to the County by regular formula, CDBG-CV1 and CDBG-CV3, ESG-CV1 and ESG-CV2 funding. The CDBG-CV1&3, ESG-CV1&2 funds allocated under the CARES Act may be used for a range of eligible activities that prepare for, prevent and recover from the COVID-19 pandemic.

On June 22, 2021, the Board of Supervisors (Board) approved the FY 2021-22 Annual Action Plan (AAP). A Substantial Amendment is required to submit an Allocation Plan for the use of the \$ 5,017,613 in HOME Investment Partnership American Rescue Plan (HOME-ARP) funding received by the Urban County from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). HOME-ARP funds were made available to HOME entitlement jurisdictions under the American Rescue Plan Act and may be used for production or preservation of affordable housing; tenant-based rental assistance; supportive services, homeless prevention services, housing counseling and/or purchase and development of non-congregate shelter. Approximately 15% or \$752,641 of the total funding is set aside for administration.

In order to qualify for funding under the CDBG, HOME or ESG programs HUD uses 80 percent of the Area Median Income (AMI) to determine eligibility. Therefore, projects and activities must ensure that persons being served have incomes at or below 80 percent AMI.

In compliance with HUD regulations (CFR 91.105), Housing & Community Development provides a 30-day public review and comment period for the following documents: the FAPP, AAP, and any substantial amendments to the AAP.

# I. Funding Allocation Policy

## A. Urban County Program

The Orange County Urban County Program is comprised of the County unincorporated area, twelve (12) cities with populations under 50,000 (participating cities) and two (2) cities,

Placentia and Yorba Linda, with populations over 50,000 (metropolitan cities). The twelve (12) participating cities include Brea, Cypress, Dana Point, Laguna Beach, Laguna Hills, Laguna Woods, La Palma, Los Alamitos, San Juan Capistrano, Seal Beach, Stanton, and Villa Park. These cities are not eligible to receive Community Planning and Development (CPD) program funds directly from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) and have opted to participate in the Urban County Program. The cities of Placentia and Yorba Linda, with populations of over 50,000, are eligible to participate as an entitlement jurisdiction and have elected to join with the Urban County Program as a metropolitan city.

#### **B.** Types of Funding Available

The Urban County Program annually receives Federal and local funds to allocate to projects and activities that meet identified needs as stated in the ConPlan. The following types of funding are anticipated to be available during FY 2023-24:

Federal Funds- Community Planning and Development Funds (CPD)

Community Development Block Grant (CDBG-14.218), Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG-14.231), Home Investment Partnerships Program (HOME-14.239) and program income generated from repayments or other funding accrued and collected from previously funded CDBG and HOME projects.

#### State/Local Funds

Orange County Housing Authority Operating Reserves, if available, Housing Successor Agency funding if available, Strategic Priority Affordable Housing Funds, State Funds including State ESG funding and or other state or local funds as may be available.

#### C. Use of Funds

The Urban County Program allocates Federal, State and local funds to a variety of projects and activities including the development of housing (both permanent and rental), improvements to public facilities, acquisition of land, housing rehabilitation and public services. Table 1 (below) identifies those Federal and local funds allocated in years 1-5 of the FY 2020-24 Consolidated Plan.

|                                | TABLE 1:     | FY 2020-24  | FUNDING A   | LLOCATION   | IS         |              |  |
|--------------------------------|--------------|-------------|-------------|-------------|------------|--------------|--|
|                                | FY 2020-21   | FY 2021-22  | FY 2022-23  | FY 2023-24* | FY 2024-25 | Funding      |  |
| Federal Program Funds          | Year 1       | Year 2      | Year 3      | Year 4      | Year 5     | Totals       |  |
| CDBG                           | \$3,273,397  | \$3,515,527 | \$3,355,708 | \$3,355,708 |            | \$13,500,340 |  |
| HOME                           | \$1,038,528  | \$1,384,437 | \$1,529,389 | \$1,529,389 |            | \$5,481,743  |  |
| ESG                            | \$223,982    | \$224,136   | \$295,517   | \$295,517   |            | \$1,039,152  |  |
| CDBG-CV1 & 3                   | \$5,710,773  |             |             |             |            | \$5,710,773  |  |
| ESG-CV1 & 2                    | \$5,764,931  |             |             |             |            | \$5,764,931  |  |
| Subtotal Federal Funds         | \$16,011,611 | \$5,124,100 | \$5,180,614 | \$5,180,614 | \$0        | \$31,496,939 |  |
| Reprogrammed /PI Federal Funds |              |             |             |             |            |              |  |
| CDBG Program Income            | \$188,197    | \$160,510   | \$133,729   |             |            | \$348,707    |  |
| CDBG Reprogrammed              | \$499,301    | \$168,600   | \$176,812   |             |            | \$844,713    |  |
| ESG Reprogrammed               |              |             |             |             |            |              |  |
| HOME Program Income            | \$1,089,565  | \$621,326   | \$840,434   |             |            | \$1,710,891  |  |
| Subtotal Reprogrammed<br>Funds | \$1,777,063  | \$950,436   | \$1,150,975 | \$0         | \$0        | \$2,904,311  |  |
| Total Federal Funding          | \$17,788,674 | \$6,074,536 | \$6,331,589 | \$5,180,614 | \$0        | \$34,401,250 |  |
| Other Funds                    | \$100,000    | \$100,000   | \$0         | 0           | \$0        | £400.000     |  |
| 15U Housing Funds              | \$50,000     | \$50,000    | \$50,000    | \$50,000    |            | \$400,000    |  |
| Total Funds                    | \$17,938,674 | \$6,224,536 | \$6,381,589 | \$5,230,614 | \$0        | \$35,775,413 |  |
| *estimated                     |              |             | -           | -           |            |              |  |

## **D.** Percentage of Allocation

Based on the needs identified in the FY 2020-24 ConPlan, Housing & Community Development is estimating the percentage of funds to allocate toward each proposed activity for the FY 2023-2024 AAP. The percentages identified in Table 2 (below) were derived from 5-Year Needs Assessment based by priority needs identified in the ConPlan as follows (these figures are subject to adjustment based on available funding amounts:

| TABLE 2: ESTIMATED FUNDING ALLOCA   | ATIONS PROPOSED FOR FY 2023-24 |  |  |  |
|---|--------------------------------|--|--|--|
|   | % Range                        |  |  |  |
| Affordable Housing *<br>(Assumes all HOME funds including 15% Home<br>CHDO mandate and funding for both affordable<br>rental and homeownership) | 25%-35%                        |  |  |  |
| Housing Rehabilitation (CDBG)   | 15%-20%                        |  |  |  |
| Public Facilities and Improvement (CDBG)  | 20%-25%                        |  |  |  |
| Public Services<br>(Includes Maximum CDBG limit of 15%, plus ESG, and local<br>funding, if available)   | 15%-20%                        |  |  |  |
| Percentage of Total Funding   | 100%                           |  |  |  |
| Source: Housing & Community Development   |                                |  |  |  |
| * Affordable Housing funding is distributed through a separate process.   |                                |  |  |  |

Affordable Housing funding is distributed through a separate process.

Because the FAPP is a forward planning document, the allocation percentages listed in Table 2 may differ from actual dollars expended based on the number of applications received and funded. The percentages may change also based on final allocations of funds from HUD and

calculation of any recaptured or reprogramed funds available from the prior fiscal years. If demand for one activity is under subscribed and funds are available to allocate to another eligible activity, which is oversubscribed, Housing & Community Development may recommend to the Orange County Board of Supervisors that funding percentages change to meet local needs.

Based on funding levels, not all projects that score the minimum 70 points required for consideration for funding may be recommended for preliminary funding. Those projects may be placed on a Wait List and will be considered for funding in the future should additional recaptured or reprogrammed dollars become available. However, due to limited resources, Housing & Community Development may also recommend funding projects that were not funded to maximum capacity prior to funding projects on the Wait List.

To avoid funding cuts, the County may utilize reprogrammed funds in FY 2023-24 as funding is available and eligible.

## E. Urban County Priorities

Priorities for the Urban County Program are established during the development of the ConPlan. The FY 2020-24 ConPlan identified, within a five-year reporting period, Orange County's overall community development needs (i.e., Housing, Special Needs, and Housing and Community Developments Activities) for extremely low, low and moderate-income persons and households. Additionally, a major component of the ConPlan is the Strategic Plan that outlines Orange County's long-term goals and prioritizes its housing and non-housing needs. The Strategic Plan also presents a comprehensive approach to addressing homelessness through a Continuum of Care System (CoC).

To better understand local needs a comprehensive Housing and Community Development Needs Survey was distributed to residents living in participating jurisdictions in the Urban County Program by the following means during the development of the FY 2020-2024 Consolidated Plan:

- Was made available on the Community Development website
- Mailed to social service providers
- Distributed at community meetings for input.
- Made available on the County Website under OC Housing & Community Development for general public input.
- Annually each Organization is responsible to conduct public hearings (City Council, Board of Supervisors, Non-Profit Board Meetings, etc.) to gather public input on activities to fund.

In addition to resident surveys, interviews were also conducted with Non-Profit Service Providers to further understand local needs.

#### **Priority Ranking:**

Based on the comprehensive Housing and Community Development Needs Survey, priority ranking was assigned to each category of need as follows:

High Priority: Activities to address this need are expected to be funded with CPD funds during the five-year period.

- Low Priority: If CPD funds are available, activities to address this need <u>may</u> be funded during the five-year period.
- No Such Need: The Urban County Program finds there is no need for such activities, or the need is already substantially addressed. The Urban County Program will not support applications for public assistance by other entities for activities where no such need has been identified.

For the purposes of allocating Federal and local resources overall priority will be given to projects that meet a "High" priority need.

- Senior Centers
- Homeless Facilities
- Neighborhood Facilities
- Water/Sewer Improvements
- Street Improvements
- Sidewalk Improvements

These priorities are subject to adjustment based on the development of the FY 2023-24 Annual Action Plan.

## Additional Priorities:

The following are examples of additional project and activity types that will be considered for funding although they did not appear on the Housing and Community Development Needs Assessment Survey.

- Homeless Services activities;
- Public Services projects filling the gap in the Homeless CoC which were not filled by Continuum of Care Homeless Assistance funding;
- Projects that fulfill federal Regulations or assist in achieving compliance with Federal law (e.g. Non-Compliance with ADA);
- Urgent Need.

## **Projects Considered Non-Priority projects:**

The following is a list including, but not limited to, projects and activity types that will not be given consideration for funding, as they are not a priority need.

- Projects that contain eligible activities not identified on the priority charts;
- Projects seeking funding for planning costs;
- Projects seeking funds for lead-based paint activity costs. These costs may be paid either through available rehabilitation funds or through funds received from other funding sources such as the Healthy-Homes, Lead-Based Paint Hazard Control Program.
- Improvements to streets/alleyways located outside of income-qualified census tracts.
- Projects involving the construction and installation of street signs.

• ADA improvements to buildings or portions thereof, which are used for the general conduct of government, that do not comply with 24 CFR570.200 (b) (1) and do not meet one of the three National Objectives of the CDBG Program.

#### Exemptions from the Funding Allocation Process:

In addition to priority and non-priority ranked projects, the Urban County Program also undertakes certain activities that are <u>exempt</u> from the competitive process:

- Administration The Urban County Program utilizes a percentage of Housing & Community Development allocations to administer the CDBG, ESG and HOME programs.
- Orange County's obligations to a specific community center within the unincorporated area.
- Public Service Activities such as Orange County's Emergency Shelter Program, and other low-threshold emergency shelters located in participating cities to receive remaining CDBG Public Services funds (capped at 15% of total CDBG allocation, plus receipted Program Income) and ESG funds.
- Fair Housing and Equal Opportunity related activities as mandated by HUD.

#### **Priority Activities**

Table 3 shows the funds for the FY 2020-24 Consolidated Plan period, the funds actually allocated in each Fiscal Year, and the difference (funds needed).

| TABLE 3: FY             | TABLE 3: FY 2020-24 FEDERAL FUNDS ALLOCATION FOR HIGH PRIORITY NEEDS |              |             |             |             |            |            |
|-------------------------|--|--------------|-------------|-------------|-------------|------------|------------|
| Activities<br>Needs and | 5 Year Plan F  | Funds Needed | FY 2020-21  | FY 2021-22  | FY 2022-23  | FY 2023-24 | FY 2024-25 |
| Priorities              |  |              | Year 1      | Year 2      | Year 3      | Year 4     | Year 5     |
| CDBG                    | \$16,366,985   | \$6,222,353  | \$3,273,397 | \$3,515,527 | \$3,355,708 |            |            |
| HOME                    | \$5,192,640  | \$1,240,286  | \$1,038,528 | \$1,384,437 | \$1,529,389 |            |            |
| ESG                     | \$1,119,910  | \$376,275    | \$223,982   | \$224,136   | \$295,517   |            |            |
| Totals                  | \$22,679,535   | \$7,838,914  | \$4,535,907 | \$5,124,100 | \$5,180,614 | \$0        | \$0        |

#### **II. Funding Allocation Process**

#### A. Non-competitive Funding Process:

- Administration The Urban County Program utilizes a percentage of Housing & Community Development allocations to administer the CDBG, ESG and HOME programs.
- Orange County's obligations to a specific community center within the unincorporated area.
- Public Service activities such as Orange County's Emergency Shelter Program, and other low-threshold emergency shelters located in participating cities to receive CDBG Public Services funds (capped at 15% of total CDBG allocation, plus receipted Program Income) and ESG funds.
- Fair Housing and Equal Opportunity related activities as mandated by HUD.

# **B.** Competitive Funding Process

The Urban County Program utilizes a competitive Request for Proposal (RFP) process to distribute both Federal, State and local funds. The following activities are funded through this competitive process

- One-year RFP for Public Facilities & Improvement projects for FY 2023-24 anticipated to be released in November 2022.
- Three-year RFP for Housing Rehabilitation for FY 2023-24, 24-25, 25-26 will be conducted and anticipated to be released November 2022.

## > Evaluation Committee

The Evaluation Committee is the evaluating body for all applications submitted in response to the Urban County Program's competitive RFP process. The Evaluation Committee is comprised of one evaluation committee for Public Facilities and Improvements and Housing Rehabilitation. The Committee may be comprised of H&CD Commission members, community representatives, County staff and other individuals knowledgeable about community development, community services, and housing activities.

## C. Multi-Year Funding Process

## Public Services and Housing Rehabilitation

For FY 2023-24, Housing & Community Development (HCD) is recommending that successful Public Services projects be funded for the first of a three-year funding cycle and Housing Rehabilitation (HR) projects recommended to be funded for the first of a three-year funding cycle.

Projects that are recommended to receive funds as the result of the funding in Year 1 (FY 2023-24) may receive funding Year 2 (FY 2024-25) and Year 3 (FY 2025-26), provided the organization successfully meets the following criteria:

- > Project remains in compliance with contractual milestones
  - All projects must expend 50% of their contractual funds and complete 50% of their contractual accomplishments by February 15, of the contract year; 70% by March 15, of the contract year; and 80% by April 15, of the contract year, unless there are extenuating circumstances.
  - All Public Service projects that serve homeless populations are required to participate in the County's Homeless Management Information System (HMIS). For information regarding HMIS please contact 2-1-1 OC at: (714) 288-4007, or HMIS-helpdesk@211oc.org.
  - Exceptions to these requirements include; contracts that expend their funding later in the fiscal year (i.e., seasonal shelters), recommendation of the Evaluation Committee, exemption from Housing & Community Development Director, and delays due to HUD or Housing & Community Development administration of contracts.
  - Project continues to meet the priority status for which it was funded in Year 1.

- All project accomplishments must be correctly reported quarterly on the Grantee Performance Report (GPR) and/or other documentation as described in current year contract.
- Project must receive a successful assessment of performance and progress from Housing & Community Development staff, including but not limited to submission of the required insurance certifications and all environmental clearances will need to be completed and cleared prior to project start date.
- Organizations that receive an unsuccessful assessment of performance will be reviewed and reevaluated by the evaluation committee for future funding consideration.

Projects meeting the February 15<sup>th</sup> contract year milestone will be included in the current year draft Annual Action Plan; however, projects that fail to meet this deadline may be removed from the draft Annual Action Plan prior to its presentation to the Orange County Board of Supervisors at the public hearing.

## D. Proposal Review Process and Key Policies

In order to ensure integrity and reliability, the proposal review process is applied to each application on a consistent basis. In addition, maximum flexibility has been built into the proposal review process in order to ensure that Federal and local resources are available to assist the County in meeting its Community Development needs. Housing & Community Development staff may provide technical support to the Evaluation Committee's proposal review process.

## 1. Proposal Review Process

All proposals will be reviewed utilizing the following six (6) steps:

- 1. Initial threshold review of all proposals submitted based on eligibility requirements established by HUD, will be conducted by Housing & Community Development staff.
- 2. After threshold review applications are forwarded to the Evaluation Committee for review, scoring, and ranking, consistent with the RFP guidelines.
- 3. Applicants deemed as unsuccessful by the Evaluation Committee are offered the opportunity to protest following the Contract Policy Manual for procurement.
- 4. After addressing any protests, Contract Development and Management (CDM) provides a list of proposals recommended for funding to Housing & Community Development staff.
- 5. Projects recommended for funding are compiled and presented to the public for comment in the draft Annual Action Plan and later to the Orange County Board of Supervisors for approval.
- 6. Projects are preliminarily awarded funding until final approval from HUD.

## 2. Key Policies

**Renewal Applicants-** Those applicants having been under contract with Housing & Community Development within the past 3 years.

- Housing & Community Development staff shall review project performance from projects within the past 3 years.
- Renewal evaluations will focus on, but will not be limited to, subrecipient compliance with contractual obligations and meeting scheduled accomplishments as reported on the current year's Grantee Performance Report (GPR).

**Activity Specific Policies**- the following requirements apply to all Public Services, Housing Rehabilitation and Public Facilities and Improvements projects and activities.

- All projects and activities providing services to homeless individuals and/or families are required to be an active participant in the Homeless Management Information System (HMIS).
- \$200,000 maximum funding amount for Housing Rehabilitation; however, limit awards to no more than 35% of the total funds available for projects.
- \$150,000 maximum funding amount with no match and \$350,000 maximum funding amount with a 20% match for Public Facilities and Improvements.

## **Minimum Application Requirement**

- A minimum application grant amount (based on available funding) is established at \$15,000 per year for all activities.
- A Maximum of one PF&I and one Housing Rehabilitation application per City or jurisdiction will be accepted.
- Projects must meet a national objective as identified by HUD Regulations Criteria for National Objectives (24 CFR 570.208).
- Depending on funding source, the proposed activity must be eligible as defined by HUD.
- Regulations under Basic Eligible Activities (24 CFR 570.201)
- The population to be served or to benefit from the project must be primarily low to moderate-income as defined by HUD.
- If the applicant is a current or past recipient of assistance under a HUD McKinney Act program (i.e., Continuum of Care) or the HUD Single Family Property Disposition Program, there must be no project or construction delay, HUD finding, outstanding Annual Progress Report (APR), or outstanding audit that HUD deems serious regarding the administration of HUD McKinney Act programs or the HUD Single Family Property Disposition Program.
- Applicant must submit a copy of the organization's most recent audit (within the last

two years) by an independent certified CPA and a description of corrective action taken for any findings identified by the auditor, both of which will be reviewed by the OC Community Resources Accounting Manager or designated staff.

• The applicant must be in compliance with applicable civil rights laws and Executive Orders. There must be no pending civil rights suits, outstanding findings, of noncompliance with civil rights statues, Executives Orders, or regulations, unresolved Secretary (Secretary of the U.S. Department of Housing and urban Development) Charge of discrimination issued under the Fair Housing Act, no adjudications of civil rights violations on a civil action or deferral of processing of applications from the applicant imposed by HUD.

## E. Substantial Amendments to Projects

#### **1. Substantial Amendment**

From time-to-time, it may be necessary for the County to process a "substantial amendment" to the Five-Year Consolidated Plan or the One Year Annual Action Plans to allow for new CDBG, ESG, HOME or local-funded activities, modification of existing activities; or other CPD program administrative actions.

Any proposed amendment that is considered a "substantial amendment" is subject to the Citizen Participation process, requires formal action by the Board of Supervisors, and approval by HUD. A thirty (30) day public notice is published, unless HUD has a waiver in place, to provide the opportunity for the public to review and comment on the proposed substantial amendments. The County will consider all comments or views received from the public concerning proposed substantial amendments in accordance with 24 CFR 91.105 (c)(3). A summary of these comments and views, including comments or views not accepted (and the reason why) shall be attached to the substantial amendment.

The County of Orange is required by HUD [24 CFR 91.505 (b)] to identify the criteria to be used in determining if a proposed action will be considered a *Substantial Amendment*. The following criteria will be used by the County – if any one criterion applies, a substantial amendment will be required:

- 1. A new activity not previously listed and described in the Consolidated Plan/Annual Action Plan;
- 2. When a proposal is made to amend the description of an existing activity in such a way that the newly described purpose, scope, or beneficiaries differ significantly from the original activity's purpose, scope, or beneficiaries; or
- 3. An increase in the amount of Federal Community Planning Development and/or local funds allocated to an existing activity when the following apply:
  - a. An increase in funding for a public service activity in an amount greater than a 50% increase over the current funded amount.
  - b. An increase in the funding for public facility improvements/housing rehabilitation in an amount greater than a 50% increase over the current funded amount.

In an effort to efficiently utilize CDBG funds within the time frames required by HUD, the County will consider the reprogramming of unspent CDBG balances from completed and cancelled CDBG-funded activities to other eligible activities as a "Non-Substantial Amendment". In the event that any of these "administrative" reprogramming actions fall under the "substantial

amendment" criteria, the proposed actions are subject to the Citizen Participation process, requires formal action by the Board of Supervisors, and subsequent approval by HUD.

## F. Non-Substantial Amendments to Projects

## • Non-Substantial Amendment

- From time-to-time, it may be necessary for the County to process a "nonsubstantial amendment" to the One Year Annual Action Plan to allow for changes in CDBG, ESG, HOME or local-funded activities, six-month extension of contract end date, or other CPD program administrative actions.
- Any proposed amendment that is considered a "non-substantial amendment" that has an increase of funding between 11% and 50% of original contract amount, requires formal action by the Board of Supervisors.

The County will maintain and provide for public review a Reprogramming Action File that provides details for every reprogramming action (Substantial and Non-Substantial) taking place during the program year.

## G. Program Income

Successful applicants will be required to comply with regulations set forth in 24 CFR 570.504, as well as all applicable State and Orange County regulations when reporting Program Income. Program Income is considered as funds generated by the successful applicant as a result of receiving Federal State and or local funds provided in a contract with Orange County.

All Program Income accrued shall be returned to Orange County on a quarterly basis prior to the successful applicant receiving any reimbursement from grant funds provided in their contract with Orange County.

#### H. Affordable Housing

Activities associated with affordable housing such as new housing construction/acquisition project proposals, rental housing, single-family acquisition/rehabilitation, homeownership and tenant based rental assistance will be approved separately and presented to the Board of Supervisors. If the County selects to do homeownership activity, it will be pursuant to the current FY 2020-24 ConPlan recapture policy.

#### I. Performance Measurements

Consistent with Federal Guidelines as referenced in Federal Register Notice, Vol. 70, No. 111, dated June 10, 2005 and Federal Register Vol 71, No. 44 Notice; March 7, 2006 update, Housing & Community Development/ developed a performance measurement system that identifies standardized objectives and outcomes for proposed activities, that can be reported at a national level. March 7, 2006 HUD updated guidelines. The following chart provides a brief outline of Housing & Community Development performance measurement system as recommended by HUD.

#### Table 4: PERFORMANCE OUTCOME MEASUREMENT SYSTEM

Step 1: Assess Needs and Select Goals

## Step 2: Select Objectives with Outcomes

## Availability/Accessibility

## Affordability

## Sustainability

Enhance Suitable Living Environment Through New/Improved Accessibility

Create Decent Housing with New/Improved Availability

Promote Economic Opportunity Through New/Improved Accessibility Enhance Suitable Living Environment Through New/Improved Affordability

Create Decent Housing with New/Improved Affordability

Promote Economic Opportunity Through New/Improved Affordability Enhance Suitable Living Environment Through New/Improved Sustainability

Create Decent Housing with New/Improved Sustainability

Promote Economic Opportunity Through New/Improved Sustainability

Step 3: Design Programs and Choose Activities

Housing Rehabilitation Rental Housing Production Community Facilities Public Safety Infrastructure Lead-based Paint Activities HIV/AIDS Tenant-based Rental Assistance Economic Development Housing for Homeless Special Needs Housing Homeownership Assistance Housing Counseling Public Services Code Enforcement Water/Sewer Utilities Transportation Step 4: Complete the Consolidated Plan/Action Plan

**Step 5**: Develop the Outcome Statement

Output (quantified) + Outcome + Activity (description) + Objective

Number of households assisted Number of new businesses assisted Number of jobs created/retained Number of units made 504-accessible Number of years of affordability guaranteed Number of jobs with health care benefits Number of units meeting Energy Star standards Number of persons stabilized Acres of brownfields remediated Amount of money leveraged Number of affordable units Number of housing units for HIV/AIDS Number of units for chronically homeless Number of units made lead safe

**Step 6**: Report (IDIS, CAPER)

For all projects report program requirements plus:

Income levels of persons, or households (30%, 50%, 60%, or 80% of area median income)Number of persons, households, unitsNumber of communities/neighborhoods assistedCurrent racial/ethnic and disability categoriesLeveraging or Match

Source: Federal Register/Vol. 70, No. 111/Friday, June 10, 2005/Notices; March 7, 2006 update

#### **Performance Objectives**

No. 1 - Suitable Living Environment: In general, this objective relates to activities that are designed to benefit communities, families, or individuals by addressing issues in their living environment.

No. 2 - Decent Affordable Housing: The activities that typically would be found under this objective are designed to cover the wide range of housing possible under HOME, CDBG, HOPWA or ESG. This objective focuses on housing programs where the purpose for the project is to meet the individual family or community needs and not programs where the housing is an element of a larger effort.

No. 3 - Creating Economic Opportunities: This objective applies to the types of activities related to economic development, commercial revitalization, or job creation.

#### Performance Outcomes

No. 1 - Availability/Accessibility: This outcome category applies to activities that make services, infrastructure, housing, or shelter available or accessible to low and moderate-income people, including persons with disabilities. In this category, accessibility does not refer only to physical barriers, but also to making the affordable basics of daily living available and accessible to low- and moderate-income people.

No. 2 - Affordability: This outcome category applies to activities that provide affordability in a variety of ways in the lives of low-and moderate-income people. It can include the creation or maintenance of affordable housing, basic infrastructure hook-ups, or services such as transportation or day care.

No. 3 - Sustainability (Promoting Livable or Viable Communities): This outcome applies to projects where the activity or activities are aimed at improving communities or neighborhoods, helping to make them livable or viable by providing benefit to persons of low- and moderate-income or by removing or eliminating slums or blighted areas through multiple activities or services that sustain communities or neighborhoods.

The outcomes and performance monitoring process will be carried out in a transparent way, so that those whom monitor performance outcomes can make informed judgments.

As stated above, applicants are required to identify their planned performance in their budget documentation and to report on their actual performance in their Grantee Performance Report (GPR). Guidance on performance and outcome accountability documents is available by contacting:

OC Housing & Community Development Craig Fee, Community Development Manager 1501 E. St Andrew Place, 1<sup>st</sup> Floor Santa Ana, CA 92705 Telephone No. (714) 480-2996 E Mail: <u>craig.fee@occr.ocgov.com</u>

# III. FY 2023-24 FUNDING ALLOCATION POLICY and PROCESS (FAPP) SCHEDULE

| October 3, 2022 to November 3, 2022 | FAPP 30-day Public Review Comment Period   |
|-------------------------------------|--|
| November 8, 2022                    | Board of Supervisors Public Hearing for FAPP   |
| March 01, 2023 to<br>March 30, 2023 | 30-day Public Review and Comment Period of the Draft FY 2023-24 Annual Action Plan (AAP) |
| April 26, 2023                      | Board of Supervisors Public Hearing to receive public comments on the FY 2023-24 AAP     |
| May 15, 2023                        | Submit the Board adopted FY 2023-24 AAP to HUD.  |

All Dates are subject to change.

Public Comments None received to Date